
Resources Department
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD

AGENDA FOR THE ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Members of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee are summoned to a meeting, 
which will be held in Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD - Islington Town Hall 
on 10 September 2018 at 7.30 pm.

Yinka Owa
Director – Law and Governance

Enquiries to : Ola Adeoye
Tel : 020 7527 3044
E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk
Despatched : 31 August 2018

Membership Substitute Members

Councillor Rowena Champion (Chair)
Councillor Roulin Khondoker (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Santiago Bell-Bradford
Councillor Tricia Clarke
Councillor Alice Clarke-Perry
Councillor Mouna Hamitouche  MBE
Councillor Clare Jeapes
Councillor Matt Nathan
Councillor Caroline Russell

Councillor Osh Gantly
Councillor Satnam Gill OBE
Councillor Anjna Khurana
Councillor Angela Picknell

Quorum is 4 members of the Sub-Committee

Public Document Pack



A. Formal Matters Pages

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Substitute Members

3. Declarations of Interest

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business:
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent;

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.  

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item.

If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item.

*(a)Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain.

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you 
or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council.

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 

longer.
(f) Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 

which you or your partner have a beneficial interest.
 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 

of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.  

This applies to all members present at the meeting.
4. Minutes of Previous Meeting 1 - 6

5. Public Questions

For members of the public to ask questions relating to any subject on the 
meeting agenda under Procedure Rule 70.5. Alternatively, the Chair may opt to 
accept questions from the public during the discussion on each agenda item.

6. Chair's Report

B. Items for Decision/Discussion Pages



1. Scrutiny Review - Draft Scrutiny Initiation Document - Resident and Volunteer 
Engagement in Parks and Open Spaces

2. Presentation - Procurement of Council Vehicles

3. Air Quality -Update and presentation from Environment Manager 7 - 24

4. Q1 Performance Report (2018/19) - Environment 25 - 28

C. Urgent non-exempt items (if any)

Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgent by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes.

D. Exclusion of press and public

To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the agenda, 
it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential information within 
the terms of the Access to Information Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, 
if so, whether to exclude the press and public during discussion thereof.

E. Confidential/exempt items Pages

F. Urgent exempt items (if any)

Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes.

The next meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee will be on 5 
November 2018



This page is intentionally left blank



1

London Borough of Islington

Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  26 June 2018

Minutes of the meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee held at 
Committee Room 5, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD - Islington Town Hall on  26 June 2018 at 
7.30 pm.

Present: Councillors: Champion (Chair), Khondoker (Vice-Chair), Clarke, 
Hamitouche, Jeapes, Nathan and Russell

Councillor Rowena Champion in the Chair

208 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item 1)
Apologies were received from Councillors Bell-Bradford and Clarke-Perry.

209 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item 2)
There were no declarations of substitute members.

210 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item 3)
There were no declarations of interest.

211 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item 4)

RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 April 2018 be confirmed as an accurate record 
of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them.

212 PUBLIC QUESTIONS (Item 5)
The Chair informed the meeting that public questions will be taken during consideration of 
each item on the agenda.

213 CHAIR'S REPORT (Item 6)
The Chair welcomed everyone and in particular the newly elected councillors to the first 
meeting of the Environment & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee.

The Chair proposed that while the Committee continues to receive Quarterly Performance 
reports, officers will be ordinarily be required to attend only two meetings out of four. This is 
to enable sufficient time for members to question the officers when they do attend. 
Anomalies or performance issues should be highlighted by the officers when providing the 
quarterly performance reports. They may be asked to attend an additional meeting to 
address particular concerns of members. This arrangement will be reviewed later in the 
year. 

214 ARRANGEMENTS AND TERMS OF REFERENCE (Item B1)
RESOLVED: 

That the membership, terms of reference and dates of meetings of the Environment & 
Regeneration Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2018/19 be noted. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  26 June 2018

2

215 OVERVIEW - ENVIRONMENT & REGENERATION SERVICES (Item B2)
Brahm Kainth, Director of Public Realm provided an overview of the Environment and 
Regeneration Department, highlighting the various services and challenges.

The following main points were noted in the discussion:

 Kevin O’Leary, is Corporate Director, Environment and Regeneration. There are 
three Service Directors, Brahm Kainth (Public Realm), Jan Hart (Public Protection) 
and Karen Sullivan (Planning and Development). The department supports five 
Executive members, Councillors Burgess, Hull, Shaikh, Ward and Webbe.

 Public Protection covers emergency planning, licensing, noise and anti-social 
behaviour, environmental health, cemetery service, cctv, and crime and disorder.

 Public Realm covers open green space and leisure, highways, street maintenance, 
rubbish and recycling, energy services, such as the Bunhill Power Station, and 
parking enforcement. 

 Planning and Development covers the determination of planning applications, 
planning enforcement, building control, inclusive economic development and 
transport planning.

 The department has more than 1,000 staff, half of whom are involved in front-line 
services, such as street maintenance. The current year’s budget is £80 million for 
operating expenditure and £20m for capital expenditure. It generates around £25 
million a year.

 In response to concerns about parking around House on the Rock, the Director of 
Public Realm requested further details so that officers could investigate whether the 
concerns relate to the terms of the planning consent, the parking bay design, or 
parking enforcement. 

 In response to a question on whether planning permission is required for installation 
of electric charging points, the Director of Public Realm advised that this depends on 
the type of contract and who installs the points. The Council has permitted rights, but 
any installation by the Mayor of London’s office would require permission. 

 An officer from the department works with the transport policy team on the 
distribution of charging points across the borough. The Council endeavours to meet 
residents’ requests as well as placing them in strategic places, such as shopping 
areas, taxi ranks and the ultra-low emission zone.

In response to a question about street cleansing the Director of Public Realm advised that 
from 4 June all residential streets would be swept daily (Monday to Friday). Each sweeper 
has been allocated a regular, manageable area. Caretakers are still responsible for housing 
estates.

The Chair thanked the Director of Public Realm for his presentation.

216 2017/18 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT- ENVIRONMENT (Item B3)
The Director of Public Realm presented the Quarter 4 Performance Report. The following 
points were noted in the discussion.

Page 2



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  26 June 2018

3

 The increased number of missed collections was due to changes introduced by the 
Service. The difficulties this caused have now been rectified and the number of 
missed collections has reduced.

 Although the tonnage of recycling remains the same as previously, more of it is 
being rejected as being contaminated. This is because buyers demand higher-
quality products rather than because of an increase in contamination by residents.    

 Director of Public Realm advised that meeting the London recycling target is 
challenging for all authorities, not only Islington. Key measures taken to increase the 
rate include educating residents, placing cameras in hot spots, and putting up new 
signage around communal recycling bins. 

 With regard to Council’s plan to ensure that Islington fulfils its goal of being a carbon 
neutral borough, the meeting was informed that for a number of years Islington had 
been pioneering ground breaking measures to address climate change and although 
the present focus of Council is on reducing fuel poverty, this has a beneficial effect 
as carbon consumption is reduced. Members were informed that Council’s strategy 
and policy in this area was being reviewed and that no timescales could be provided 
as this was subject to government legislation, campaigning and infrastructure being 
in place.

 Councils have no power to introduce local congestion charges. The extension of the 
Ultra Low Emission Zone into Islington will have an impact on pollution. Islington 
continues to the first local authority to introduce CO2 based charging for permits and 
has introduced a diesel surcharge for pay and display parking.

 Officers and the Executive Member for Environment and Transport were considering 
closing streets around schools to traffic at the beginning and end of the school day 
in order to reduce the emissions to which the children are exposed.

RESOLVED
That the report be noted. 

217 2017/18 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT - EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS (Item 
B4)
Councillor Shaikh, Executive Member, Economic Development presented the Q4 
Performance Report.

The following points were made.

 Overall the Council is achieving its targets on reducing unemployment and 
supporting people into work. It is focusing on the long-term unemployed, particularly 
young people and those facing multiple barriers to employment.

 The number of parents supported into employment was good compared with the 
same period last year. This was as a result of improved processes for capturing data 
on outcomes from partners, and Team Islington being able to provide more 
employment opportunities for residents with physical disabilities. 

 The increase in the number of apprentices taken on by the Council has been made 
possible by aligning the apprenticeship scheme with the school term, and by 
ensuring that schools are aware that their school leavers have the option of a good-

Page 3



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  26 June 2018

4

quality apprenticeship.

 Islington has the highest proportion of London school leavers going into 
apprenticeships, which is attributable to the Council’s aligning the scheme with the 
school year. 

 Officers are considering setting targets to measure performance on Adult 
Community Learning. An update will be provided at a future meeting.

 Officers indicated that a large number of apprentices are placed in the construction 
sector, others within NHS, and some in engineering firms. A breakdown of sector-
by-sector apprenticeship placements will be provided.

 In response to concerns that Greenwich Leisure Limited were not taking on enough 
apprentices, considering the high level of investment in the borough, the Head of 
Greenspace and Leisure Services advised that GLL has been achieving their target 
of 20 apprentices per year. Concern was also raised about the loss of self-employed 
instructors. The Head of Greenspace and Leisure Services responded that GLL 
operates a mixture of self-employed and full time employees to ensure continuity of 
classes. 

 The Council focuses on providing employment support to groups that are not well 
served by other providers.

 The Council continues to look at ways of increasing the skills of young people 
interested in the technology sector to enable them to find careers in coding and 
programming. An update will be provided at a future meeting. 

 With regards to the support provided to school pupils, support for all pupils continues 
for up to two years after they leave school after which they are the responsibility of 
the local authority in which they reside.  In the case of Islington College, however, 
the Council only support pupils that reside in Islington.

 On the question of how Council promotes apprentice schemes on housing estates, 
the meeting was advised that the Council’s iWork service set up Employment 
Clusters (located in Finsbury Park, Archway and South Cluster) with the aim of 
reaching out to local residents and community groups to publicise employment 
opportunities including apprenticeships.

RESOLVED
That the report be noted.

218 SCRUTINY TOPICS AND WORK PROGRAMME 2018/2019 (Item B5)
1. That officers presenting quarterly reports on Employment and Environment 

performance attend two out of four meetings in the municipal year. This 
arrangement will be reviewed later in the year.  

2. That the main scrutiny topic for 2018/19 would be Resident and Volunteering 
Engagement in Parks and Open Spaces.

3. That a mini-review of the procurement of the Council’s fleet be considered in 
September 2018.

Page 4



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  26 June 2018

5

4. That the Scrutiny Initiation Document be drawn up and agreed in principle by the 
Chair and Vice Chair and the scope of the scrutiny be formally agreed at the next 
meeting. 

5. That, as part of the scrutiny, site visits to parks and open spaces will be organised.

6. That Friends Groups and Community Garden Groups will be invited to a meeting. 

7. That the work programme reflecting the above be considered at the next meeting. 

The meeting ended at 9.35 pm

CHAIR

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Background information about the effects of air 

quality on health and wellbeing in Islington

Health and Social Care Scrutiny

1

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 B
3



§ What is air quality

§ The scale and location of air quality issues in Islington

§ The health impacts of poor air quality and benefits of improving

§ Overview of local programmes and interventions to improve air quality

§ Scrutiny recommendations

Content

2

P
age 8



Air quality refers to the air around us, how clean it is and how many pollutants 

(harmful chemicals or substances) it contains.

Air pollution is a gas (or a liquid/solid dispersed through ordinary air) released in a 

big enough quantity to harm the health of people, animals and/or plants. It can 

also damage or disrupt other aspects of the environment (such as making 

buildings crumble), or cause other kinds of nuisance (reduced visibility, 

unpleasant odour etc.).

It's the quantity (or concentration) of the chemicals in the air that makes the 

difference between harmless air and polluted air.

Definition of air pollution

3

P
age 9



South of the borough 

most polluted

60% of borough over 

EU limits of 40

Every school near an 

area of high pollution

Scale and location of poor air quality in Islington

4

P
age 10



Particulates: These are the sooty deposits in air that blacken buildings and cause 

breathing difficulties. In London, most particulates come from traffic fumes, brake 

and tyre wear and increasingly, wood burning.

Particulates of different sizes are referred to by the letters PM followed by a 

number, so PM
10

means particles of less than 10 microns (less than 10/1000ths of 

a millimetre).

We are most worried about fine (PM
2.5

) and ultrafine (PM
1
) particulate matter as 

these can enter deep into the lungs and into the bloodstream.

Major air pollutants 1

5

P
age 11



Nitrogen oxides (NO
X
): Both nitrogen dioxide (NO

2
) and nitrogen oxide (NO) are 

gas pollutants made as a result of burning when nitrogen and oxygen react 

together. They are harmful to health. A big source of NO
X

is from vehicle engines. 

Ozone (O
3
): At ground level, ozone is a toxic pollutant that can damage health. It 

forms when sunlight strikes a cocktail of other pollution and is a key ingredient of 

smog.

Major air pollutants 2

6

P
age 12



Islington NOx emissions by source 

type:

Major Roads 43%

Commercial Gas 17%

Domestic Gas 13%

Minor Roads 6%

NRMM 2%

Industry 1%

Other 18%

Source apportionment

7

P
age 13



§ Short term- in high pollution episodes 

those with existing heart and 

respiratory conditions may find them 

exacerbated. In really high episodes 

otherwise healthy individuals may be 

impacted.

§ Long term- the impact of exposure to 

air pollution over a long period is 

arguably even greater and evidence of 

the health impacts is increasing. It is 

known to increase the risk of 

respiratory and cardiovascular 

diseases and is also increasingly linked 

to other conditions.

Impacts of air quality on health

8

P
age 14



Short-term effects of poor AQ on deaths and hospital 

admissions in London

9

§ PM
2.5

: 

§ 818 deaths brought forward

§ 2072 respiratory hospital admissions 

§ 769 cardiovascular hospital admissions

§ NO
2
: 

§ 461 deaths brought forward 

§ 419 respiratory hospital admissions 

§ No estimates available at local level

P
age 15



Long-term effects of poor AQ: early deaths

10

§ PM
2.5

attributable mortality equivalent to 88 deaths in Islington

§ NO
2
attributable mortality equivalent to 164 deaths in Islington

§ Estimated overlap of 30% in the effects of PM
2.5 

and NO
2
, underlying the need 

to reduce both.

§ The cause of death is not recorded as air pollution, rather (usually) heart or 

respiratory disease.

§ Air pollution exacerbates heart and lung conditions which hastens death.

§ The above deaths represent an average of 8.9 months lost attributable to PM
2.5

and 4.8 months lost attributable to NO
2 
across all deaths, although this will be 

greater for people who died of heart or lung disease

P
age 16



§ Before birth, high levels of PM
2.5

are associated with low birth weight

§ Children are particularly at risk:

– their lungs are still developing

– they have a relatively high metabolic rate, so they breathe a greater volume of air 

per minute than an adult relative to their size

– they are closer to vehicle exhausts, one of the biggest pollution sources

§ Research into early exposure shows links between air pollution and lung 

function, respiratory infections, asthma exacerbation, cognitive development, 

and development of the brain and coordination

§ There’s also some evidence that air pollution plays a part in causing asthma, 

but more research is needed

Impacts of air quality start early

11

P
age 17



As well as increased risk of early death and increased risk of hospital admissions:

§ Time off school or work for illness

§ Economic impact of long-term conditions including loss of earnings and increased costs 

of keeping the home warm for longer

§ Deterrence of engaging in physical and/or social activities (particularly among people 

with existing conditions)

§ Poor air quality impacts negatively on self-reported wellbeing 

Air quality: other impacts on health and wellbeing

12

P
age 18



A combination of policies at different levels influence air quality:

§ national level e.g. vehicle and fuel taxes, policy to promote uptake of cleaner 

technologies, new Clean Air Strategy

§ city-wide e.g. healthy streets, congestion charging, low emission zones, investment in 

public transport, announcement of ULEZ expansion

§ borough level e.g. local travel infrastructure, parking policy

Programmes to improve air quality

13

P
age 19



§ Infrastructure/Policies

– Reducing construction pollution, officers and planning

– Parking surcharges for diesel vehicles

– Electric charging points

§ Behaviour change/ awareness raising

– AirText

– Work with health professionals and schools

– Idling Action events

– Car Free Day and Clean Air Day

§ Low and Zero Emissions Networks- Archway and 

City Fringe, working with businesses and residents 

on infrastructure and behaviour change

§ New schemes all the time

Examples of local programmes

14

P
age 20



Pollution sources outside of Local Authority control

§ “Transboundary” – international, national and regional sources

§ Through traffic

§ Diesel sources (freight, buses, taxis)

AQ is cross cutting issue which impacts on multiple and diverse policy areas 

across the council. It requires:

§ Closer and stronger communication and coordination across the Council, e.g. 

through a corporate board or steering group

§ Improving/targeting public awareness and changing attitudes

§ Funding and resources: initiatives and enforcement

Key barriers and challenges to further improvement

15

P
age 21



§ Working with neighbouring 

boroughs

§ Business engagement

§ Lobby Mayor on bus routes

§ Investigate low emission zone

§ Air quality priority when conflicts 

with carbon reduction

§ Increase in tree planting and air 

quality planting

§ Update vehicle fleet

§ FORS award

§ FORS as part of procurement

§ Bid for funding

Previous Recommendations 2013

16

§ Work with TfL in NO2 Focus Areas

§ Avoid penalties for air quality regulations

§ Cycle racks

§ Air quality working group

§ Work with public health and Health 

Scrutiny Committee

§ Apply for Cleaner Air Borough Award

§ Update on air quality between action plans

§ Citizen action network

§ Air quality events

§ Walk to school plans

§ Environment to encourage walking and 

cycling

P
age 22



§ Car transport

§ Schools

§ Through traffic

§ Idling vehicles

§ Communications strategy

§ Officer forum

§ Lobby the Government

§ Mayor of London’s Clean Air Strategy

§ Whittington NHS Trust

§ Health and Wellbeing Board policies

Recommendations of Health and Care Scrutiny March 

2018

17

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

 

Environment & Regeneration 
Town Hall, Upper Street, London N1 2UD

Report of: Executive Member for Environment and Transport
Meeting of Date Agenda Item Ward(s)
Environment and 
Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee

10 September 2018 All

Delete as 
appropriate Exempt Non-exempt

Report: 2018/19 Quarter 1 Performance Report – Environment 

1. Synopsis
1.1 Each year the Council agrees a set of performance indicators and targets which help us to monitor 

progress in delivering corporate priorities and working towards our goal of making Islington a fairer 
place to live and work. 

1.2 Progress is reported on a quarterly basis through the Council’s Scrutiny function to challenge 
performance where necessary and to ensure accountability to residents. 

1.3 This report gives a progress update for those indicators related to Environment for the first quarter 
of 2018/19. As the new Corporate Plan is still being finalised, some of the stated targets remain 
provisional.  

2. Recommendations 
2.1 To note progress as at the end of Quarter 1 against key performance indicators.

3. Background
3.1 The Council routinely monitors a wide range of performance measures to ensure that the services 

it delivers are effective, respond to the needs of residents and offer good quality and value for 
money. 

3.2 Each of the Council’s four theme based scrutiny committees are responsible for monitoring 
performance in their own areas.

Page 25

Agenda Item B4



2

4. Quarter 1 update on Environment performance

      

Effective disposal of waste and recycling

4.1 Audited quarterly recycling rate data from Waste Data Flow comes in around three months after 
the end of the quarter. The confirmed rate for 17/18 is 29.4%, compared to 31.6% for 16/17. 
Analysis is ongoing but the main reason for the lower rate appears to be an increase in tonnages 
rejected as contaminated. There is no direct evidence of actual higher contamination levels of 
Islington resident’s waste, but recycling industry tolerances have become tighter and much of our 
waste is not separately processed from that of other boroughs.            

4.2 In provisional benchmarking terms, the above figure means that the Council has likely slipped from 
having the third highest recycling rate of the twelve Inner-London Boroughs in 16/17 to now the 
fifth highest rate.            

4.3 Last year’s figure for residual (non-recycled) waste per household is 375kg, exceeding the 
previous best ever result of 381kg is 16/17 and well ahead of the NLWA agreed target of 413kg.  
Islington’s residual waste per household remains the second lowest of all 32 London Boroughs. 

4.4 Missed collections performance has improved consistently over the last year with Q1 averaging 
327 pcm compared to the target of 400, and less than half the average monthly figure for Q1 17/18 
of 700. Rounds changes and the arrival of new fleet vehicles have both supported these 
improvements.

Objective PI No Indicator

Fr
eq

ue
nc

y Q1 
2018/19
Actual

Target 
2018/19

On/Off 
target 17/18 actual 

Better 
than 
last 

year?

ER1
Percentage of household 
waste recycled and 
composted (Q in arrears)

Q
       29.5%

(17/18 
outturn)

36.1% off 31.6%
(16/17) no

ER2

Number of missed waste 
collections - domestic and 
commercial (per calendar 
month)

M 327 pcm 400 pcm on 550 pcm yes

Effective 
disposal of 
waste and 
recycling

ER6 Number of reported flytips 
(all land types) M 403 in Q1 not set n/a 727 in Q1 

17/18 yes

a) Percentage of planning 
applications determined 
within 13 weeks or agreed 
time (majors)

M 100%
Q1 90% on 100% same 

b) Percentage of planning 
applications determined 
within the target (minors)

M 89.2%
Q1 84% on 88.2% yes

Deal 
promptly with 
planning 
applications

ER3

c) Percentage of planning 
applications determined 
within the target (others)

M 89.0%
Q1 85% on 90.4% no

Promote and 
increase use 
of leisure 
centres

ER4 Number of leisure visits Q 683.4k tbc on 2,514k yes

Tackle fuel 
poverty ER5 Residents’ energy cost 

savings (annualised) Q £32,201 £190,000
(£19,500 Q1) on £202k yes

Page 26



3

4.5 Members have previously asked for a dumping/fly-tipping indicator, and this has been added as 
a monthly measure in ER6 above. This is the total number of reported fly-tips across all land types 
and waste types, and the total for 17/18 was 2588 across the borough compared to 3,011 in 16/17 
(a 14% reduction) and 4,174 in 15/16. This data is entered on the national fly-capture database, 
though benchmarking is not considered viable as numbers (and by inference, working definitions) 
differ so widely. 

4.6 The above improving trend has continued in the first quarter of 18/19 with the total number of fly-
tips standing at 403 compared to that for the same quarter last year of 727.         

Deal promptly and effectively with planning applications

4.7 Planning applications performance for Majors in quarter 1 has remained at 100% determined 
within time (representing nine out of nine). Performance with both Minors and Others applications 
are also well ahead of the targets, standing at 89.2% and 89.0% respectively. However, the 
backlog of ‘already out of time’ applications has risen slightly from 239 in May to 257 at the end of 
July and these will have to be renegotiated and/or put through in a managed way.  

4.8 In benchmarking terms for the most recent 12-month period for which data has been published 
(calendar year 2017), the Council’s performance remains in the top quartile of all London 
Borough’s for Majors, borderline top quartile for Minors, and 2nd quartile for Others.  

Promote and increase use of public facilities

4.9 Total Leisure visits during the first quarter of 18/19 remained very strong at 683,400, 13% up on 
the same quarter last year and well over the GLL contractual target (the monthly disaggregation of 
these over the coming year is still being established). Targeted usage is also very strong, with 
membership for people with disabilities now over 850 (the highest in the country), and Senior 
Members at an all-time high of over 1250.     

Resident’s energy cost savings

4.10 The annualised estimated energy cost savings for residents across the first quarter of 18/19 
has come in at £32,200, 65% ahead of the target and due to over sixty referrals for Warm Home 
Discount and strong performance on Energy Doctor in the Home. Debt Relief savings were broadly 
on target this quarter.

4.11 In October 2017, we successfully launched Angelic Energy, the Council branded white label 
number energy supply company (in partnership with Robin Hood Energy). The first 12-month 
target is 4000 meter points on supply, and as of the end of July we’d achieved just over 2,900, 
broadly on trajectory and with over 90% of Angelic Energy customers being Islington residents. We 
have seen a growing of smart meters’ installation and our tariff continues to be competitively priced 
when compared to the big Six energy suppliers.    

Final Report Clearance

Signed 

         

Executive Member for Environment and 
Transport

Date

Report author: 
Name: Steve Wills
Job Title: Performance and Business Officer, Environment and Regeneration
Tel: 020 7527 2613  E-mail: Stephen.wills@islington.gov.uk

Page 27

mailto:Stephen.wills@islington.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B3 Air Quality -Update and presentation from Environment Manager
	B4 Q1 Performance Report (2018/19) - Environment

